<u>Minutes</u>

SOCIAL SERVICES, HOUSING AND PUBLIC HEALTH POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE



22 March 2018

Meeting held at Committee Room 6 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge

	MEMBERS PRESENT:
	Councillors: Wayne Bridges (Chairman)
	Jane Palmer (Vice-Chairman)
	Teji Barnes
	Becky Haggar
	Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana
	Tony Éginton
	June Nelson
	John Morse
	Mary)'Connor (Co-opted member)
	OFFICERS PRESENT: Kate Kelly-Talbot (Assistant Director – Adult Social
	Care), Andrea Nixon (LSCB and SAB Business Manager), Steve Ashley
	(LSCB and SAB Independent Chair) and Neil Fraser (Democratic Services
	Officer)
61.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TO REPORT THE PRESENCE OF
•	ANY SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Agenda Item 1)
	/ It's Good It's It's Indiana it's It's It's It's It's It's It's It's I
	Apologies were received from Councillors Peter Davis and Peter Money.
	Councillor Morse was present as Councillor Money's substitute.
	Sourcement money of cubotitutes
	Apologies were also received from Dan Kennedy.
	Theregies were also reserved from Barrice medy.
62.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS
02.	MEETING (Agenda Item 2)
	MEETING (Agenda nom 2)
	None.
	None.
63.	TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 27 FEBRUARY
03.	2018 (Agenda Item 3)
	2010 (Agenda item 3)
	RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2018
	be approved as a correct record.
64.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED IN PART I
04.	WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED
	PART II WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)
	It was confirmed that there were no Dort II items and that all have a second
	It was confirmed that there were no Part II items, and that all business would
	therefore be conducted in public.

65. **DRAFT SAB ANNUAL REPORT** (Agenda Item 5)

Steve Ashley, Independent Chairman of Hillingdon's Safeguarding Adults Board, introduced the draft SAB Annual Report. It was confirmed that the draft report had been brought to the Committee to provide Members with the opportunity to review the content and request any changes or additions ahead of the final report, which was to be published later in the year.

An updated version of the draft report was tabled at the meeting. The Committee was informed that the draft report was still awaiting the inclusion of certain information, including details around domestic abuse and the year-end performance figures.

Mr Ashley provided the Committee with a general presentation on the topic of safeguarding adults.

It was confirmed that Safeguarding Adults Boards have three core duties:

- 1. Develop and publish an Annual Strategic Plan setting out how they will meet their strategic objectives and how their members and partner agencies will contribute.
- 2. Publish an Annual report detailing how effective their work has been.
- 3. Arrange Safeguarding Reviews for any cases which meet the criteria, detailing the findings and subsequent action.

It was highlighted that adult boards were still relatively new, and Hillingdon's board was still growing. However, feedback from recent meetings had shown that the Hillingdon Board's development was ahead of other London Boards.

The six principles of safeguarding adults were confirmed as:

- Empowerment
- Prevention
- Proportionality
- Protection
- Partnership
- Accountability

The differences between safeguarding children and safeguarding adults were highlighted, with adults having the right to reject safeguarding and put themselves at risk, should they wish. There was, therefore, a balance to be found between ensuring the safety of adults while respecting their choices.

Developments in Multi Agency working were set out, and included:

- Business plan 2015-2019.
- Launch of Making Safeguarding Personal
- SAB Executive Board.
- Community Safety Partnership.
- Local Safeguarding Children Board.
- Masterclass Sepsis Event

Sepsis was recognised as a serious issue, with the number of instances of

Sepsis related deaths increasing. It was highlighted that deaths could be prevented if sepsis was identified early, and relevant training sessions had been run to ensure relevant staff were trained to recognise its symptoms. More training was planned for future months.

Ethnicity statistics were set out, though there were issues with the accuracy of this data. It was agreed that Mr Ashley would forward updated data to the Committee via the clerk.

In 2016-17, investigations conducted by social care teams found that the most common forms of abuse were:

- Neglect 186 cases.
- Physical abuse 83 cases.
- Financial / material abuse 89 cases.

Abuse occurred in:

- Own home 20%
- Care homes 28%

It was recognised that the remaining 52% could occur in a wide variety of locations.

Regarding Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS), the Committee was informed that DoLS remained controversial, due to the amount of work and cost inherent to it. In many cases, costs resulted from court cases, which were seen to be increasing. Work was being undertaken to further review DoLS.

Further areas for development included:

- Performance data across partner agencies improving data analysis and challenge
- Hoarding, Self neglect, Modern Day Slavery, Human Trafficking.
- Continual developmental of SAB webpage.
- Learning from Safeguarding Adult Reviews.
- Homelessness.

Details of Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) would be published later in the year, once the Executive Board had reviewed and officially signed-off on the information.

Priorities for 2017/18 included:

- Professionals to take a person centred and holistic approach to safeguarding.
- Advocacy for individuals who lack mental capacity or difficulty in decision making.
- Minimise repeat safeguarding issues.
- Robust risk assessment and management arrangements involving adults, their families and carers.
- Improving data analysis to measure outcomes.
- Increase engagement of the SAB with vulnerable adults.
- Ensure effective holding of agencies to account.

Members asked a number of questions, including:

Was the board confident that residents were aware of who to contact and how to raise safeguarding concerns?

Yes, there was confidence that issues were being raised to the appropriate points of contact. All issues are recorded, regardless of 'threshold'. From there, an overview of issues is maintained by the Council, who is able to conduct internal reviews of services and partners, should those be deemed necessary. However, it was recognised that more work remained to be done in order to further raise the profile of safeguarding across the Borough.

Was receiving timely data from partners still an issue?

Receiving data from partners was, at times, challenging. Efforts had been made to simplify the process in order to make it as easy as possible for partners, and there had been a marked improvement in responses for this year versus previous years. However, there were still improvements that could be made.

How confident was the Board that care workers were supporting their clients properly?

There was no evidence that companies were not fulfilling their duties properly. However, it had been accepted that the analysis of complaints had not been good enough in the past. Moving forward, analysis would be improved by reviewing individual companies and the type of complaints being received. The Board now included representation from Care Homes, which would help in this regard.

Regarding deaths caused by a lack of safeguarding, was the Board able to work more closely with coroners to receive their reports more quickly? The successful work of Barnet Council was highlighted.

It had been recognised that the delays in receiving coroner reports was not acceptable, and staff changes at the coroner's office had occurred as a result. It was agreed that Mr Ashley would speak with Barnet Council to review best practice and how they successfully work with their coroners.

Would suicide be included within the safeguarding strategy moving forward?

Yes, this was not present in the draft report but would be included in the final report later in the year.

How was fraud dealt with as a safeguarding issue?

Fraud was difficult to manage by way of safeguarding, as instances of fraud would include involvement from a variety of partners, including the Police. In many cases, if the 'victim' was deemed to have mental capacity, no action could be taken.

What training had been offered, and which partner agencies had attended?

Training sessions on a variety of subjects had been offered, including

domestic abuse, FGM, and forced marriages. A trainer had been commissioned for level 1-3 training on safeguarding for adults, from April 2018 onwards. It was agreed that details of which agencies had attended the training would be forwarded to the Committee via the clerk.

Concerns were raised over the accuracy of the draft report in respect of references to data that could be found on the Board's website. The Committee was advised that priorities for the year included updating the website and that the references to the data on the website contained within the report would be accurate by the time of the final report publication.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the draft report be noted;
- 2. That updated ethnicity data be forwarded to the Committee via the clerk;
- 3. That details of attendance at training events be forwarded to the Committee via the clerk;
- 4. That the Board's Independent Chairman speak with Barnet Council with a view to understanding how they successfully worked with their coroner offices; and
- 5. That the Committee be invited to the Board's next Sepsis event.
- 66. **CABINET FORWARD PLAN** (Agenda Item 6)

RESOLVED: That the Cabinet Forward Plan be noted.

67. DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 (Agenda Item 7)

RESOLVED: That the draft Work Programme 2018/19 be noted.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.08 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Neil Fraser - Democratic Services Officer on 01895 250692. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.